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SUBJECT: 	 Westlands Water District Comments Concerning the Avenal Energy 

Project (08-AFC-1) 


Dear Ms. Allen, 

This letter is in response to Avenal Power Center, LLC's Application for Certification 
(AFC) for the Avenal Power Center, LLC's Avenal Energy Project. The AFC is for the 
construction and operation of a 600 megawatt combined-cycle electric power generating 
plant and ancillary facilities. The proposed project will be located within Westlands 
Water District, between the San Luis Canal (California Aqueduct) and the Avenal Cutoff 
Road, six miles northeast of the City of Avenal in Kings County, California. 

Westlands Water District (District) has a few observations and comments regarding the 
AFC. 

1. The AFC indicates that the City of Avenal will provide raw water for industrial uses to 
the proposed project from the city's municipal and industrial water service contract with 
the United States Bureau of Reclamation. Additionally, groundwater from three local 
wells would provide a back-up water source. Though, the City has a Contract with the 
United States for water service, shortage provisions within the Contract provide for 
reductions in supply due to hydrology and environmental restrictions. The Bureau's 
2008 initial allocation to municipal and industrial contractors was 75%. The Bureau's 
allocation to agricultural water contractors, including Westlands Water District was only 
45%. The District anticipates that ongoing restrictions on Delta pumping facilities will 
continue to cause reduced allocations for all contractors south of the Delta. 

2. The AFC indicates that the Avenal Power Center will be located on 144 acres that 
have beenlwill be acquired. The District currently allocates water to the land in 
accordance with the District's rules (copy enclosed). The portion of the parcel that is 
developed will no longer be entitled to an allocation of water from the District. While 
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the balance of the parcel will continue to be eligible to receive an allocation of water, the 
use of that water will be restricted to only agricultural purposes. 

3. The AFC, section 6.5-7, identifies three wells that would provide back-up water 
supply in the event of shortages. Several years ago the ownership of the groundwater 
pumping facilities was transferred to the District, so that electrical power could be 
provided through ,the District's Groundwater Management Program (Program). Any 
agreement for groundwater use from these facilities would have to be approved by the 
District's Board of Directors. As noted above, the District's allocation falls well short of 
what is necessary to sustain crops, and the District expects that a majority of the 
shortfall will be made up through pumping groundwater. To date the District's Board 
has opposed projects that have the potential to increase demand from the groundwater 
basin which is currently overdrafted. 

4. -The District is concerned with the water use offset measures proposed in the AFC 
document. The document describes typical water application rates for certain crop 
types and suggests measures, to be taken by the landowners, which may offset the 
proposed increase in use of groundwater. In many cases the suggested measures have 
already been implemented due to existing water shortages and cropping pattern 
changes. Therefore the conservation measures cited may have little or no benefits. 

Thank you for the opportunity to assist the California Energy Commission in this matter. 
If you need further assistance please contact Israel Sanchez at (559) 241 -6237. 

Sincerely, 

Russ Freeman 
Supervisor of Resources 

Enclosure 






















